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Fax:  775-850-1444 

Web Page: https://bop.nv.gov/ 

This information is provided as a courtesy on behalf of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy.  This information does not constitute legal advice and 
does not override the specific provisions of Nevada law as applied to a particular set of facts.  

  

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This message and any accompanying documents are intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which they 
are addressed.  They may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential or exempt from disclosure under applicable Federal or 
State law.  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you are strictly prohibited from reading, using, 
sharing or copying this communication or its contents.  If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy 
the original transmission.  

From: Camerin Passey < > 
Sent: Friday, May 24, 2024 10:59 AM 
To: Pharmacy Board <pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov> 
Subject: Proposed staffing legislation  
  

WARNING - This email originated from outside the State of Nevada. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

To the Nevada Board of Pharmacy,  
 
I've reviewed the proposed legislation for minimum pharmacy staffing requirements, and as a 
prospective independent pharmacy owner, I need to voice my concerns.   
 
I understand the need to have some form of regulation for the corporate retail chain pharmacies in this 
arena as they routinely under staff their locations and overwork their employees to cut costs.  However, 
that is not a situation I've regularly encountered with independently owned and operated 
pharmacies.  Compliance with this legislation as written would be quite cost-prohibitive, especially for 
independent pharmacies.  It would put me in the position of saying, "I hope I don't need to fill more than 
180 prescriptions throughout my 9-hour day today, otherwise I'll be required to hire an additional 
pharmacist that I don't really need."  My first recommendation would be to include an exception for 
independently owned & operated pharmacies as has been written already for institutional and 
correctional institution pharmacies. 
 
If that is not an option, I would suggest the number of prescriptions per hour be increased significantly 
for both the pharmacist and pharmacy technician staffing requirements.  My team, consisting of myself 
and two well-trained technicians, can efficiently and safely fill upwards of 250-300 prescriptions over the 
course of a 9-hour day without issue.  Granted, we don't offer non-dispensing services, so I would 
understand the need for additional staffing in those pharmacies that do.  That being said, I believe the 
legislation should allow for closer to 30-35 prescriptions per hour for 1 pharmacist and go up from 
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there.  I would also suggest 15-18 prescriptions per hour per technician; so with two technicians, 30-35 
prescriptions per hour should be no problem. 
 
Lastly, I see a major problem in monitoring and documenting hourly compliance with the staffing 
requirements.  Anyone who's worked in a retail pharmacy knows the first few hours of the day are the 
busiest.  The way the legislation is written suggests you would really need to over staff to meet the hourly 
limits for the first few hours of the day, or turn patients away in order to maintain hourly compliance, 
neither of which is a practical solution.  Also, the burden of hourly documentation to meet the demands 
of the law, in addition to meeting the demands of patients would be quite excessive.  If documentation is 
required for compliance with staffing requirements, it should be limited to a daily record that averages 
the total prescriptions filled over the number of hours open for business, not an hourly record. 
 
I know I'm not alone in my concerns over this proposed legislation.  I truly hope the Board takes into 
consideration the practical concerns the proposal raises and makes the needed adjustments.  I agree 
some pharmacies, specifically corporate retail chains, need regulation like this.  However, 
independently owned and operated pharmacies should not be placed in the same category or face 
undue burden to comply with a regulation when they really haven't been a part of the problem the 
regulation addresses. 
 
Thank you! 
 
 
Camerin Passey, PharmD, MBA 
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WARNING - This email originated from outside the State of Nevada. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

 
 
----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From:  > 
To: license@nvbop.org <license@nvbop.org> 
Cc: David Simsek  
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 at 10:23:03 PM PDT 
Subject: Thoughts on the proposed regulations to improve workplace & patient safety 
 
Greetings to the NV St Bd of Rx: 
 
Thank you so much for taking that survey seriously & proposing regulations to address the concerns 
of pharmacists & technicians that the survey brought to light. 
 
Although you have given me new found respect for the NV St Bd Rx administration in proposing 
these rules, I don't see how they will pass given the power & scope of control that the chain 
pharmacies have over the board.  My blessings are with you in this endeavor.  
 
That being said, here are a couple of SUGGESTIONS that might help getting these regulations 
passed. 
 
1)    Take the pharmacist in charge out of the adversarial position that these regs place him/her in by 
having the "data" (script volume, for example) automatically sent to the board each night 
electronically just like you have PMP data sent.  Then the "data" is the "data" & the PIC isn't at odds 
with his or her boss and the board is not dependent upon the PIC to "volunteer" this information. 
 
2)    Write the regs such that the "data" is weighted over each week & given a daily average/hour over 
the week.  This will give flexibility for the normal spikes that happen.  For example a single 
man/women pharmacy that normally runs about 150-180 Rx's/day, but occasionally has a busy 230 
Rx's/day Monday wouldn't have to automatically add a pharmacist or have a work slowdown for just 
that one day (within reason).  I think this approach would get you more buy in from the chains.  Also 
that would allow for spikes in workflow to accommodate processing of refills which take less effort 
than processing new prescriptions.  Compounding pharmacies might need different numbers to work 
with because of the complexity of processing those types of prescriptions. 
 
3)     And absolutely keep all of that non-prescription duties that many retail pharmacies are required 
to perform (vaccines, etc.) separate from the mix.  That is a huge time & disruption component to the 
daily life of a pharmacist.  I can't emphasis that every interruption or disruption to prescription filling 
adds a huge risk for mistakes. 
 
4)    I noticed that a huge number of pharmacists (55%) are required to work off the clock.  I think this 
could easily be remedied if you were to write a reg that required all pharmacists including PIC's must 
be hired as hourly pharmacists (except for those solely in administrative jobs that don't require 
dispensing), and that they must be paid for hourly for all duties of their job description when they are 
actually working. No more salary's for retail pharmacists.  They don't really do the hiring & firing 
anyway.  It's the district managers & owners that do that.    
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5) Also requiring a pharmacy tech to work at ALL times with a pharmacist is a great idea because
it deters robberies & deters the temptation of diversion.  There would be exceptions of course for rural 
CAH hospital pharmacists who many times get called back after hours or are simply too slow to need
a technician at all times.  They have many administrative duties that require their time but not that of a 
technician.  And in a hospital setting there are lots of other employees around, so the pharmacist is
not truly alone like they are in a retail setting.

Thank you for allowing feed back for the board meeting on 05-29-24. 

David Simsek, RPh, NV Rx Lic #11073. 
From Winnemucca NV 
29-years Nevada rural hospital pharmacy experience
2.5-years Nevada rural independent retail pharmacy experience
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From: Matt Christensen < > 
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2024 9:46 AM 
To: Pharmacy Board <pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov>; Matt Christensen < > 
Subject: Proposed Regulations for 5/29/2024  
  

WARNING - This email originated from outside the State of Nevada. Exercise caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders. 

To start out, I would like to applaud your desire to try and make changes to the working conditions in 
the pharmacies. I felt that the survey was a good idea and I was surprised at the responses and 
comments in the survey results. 

I own and operate four small rural independent pharmacies in Nevada. I believe that I could comply with 
even the proposed regulations. I do not think the proposed regulations would be what is best for retail 
pharmacies in Nevada. I do not want to just complain about the proposed regulations. I think I have 
suggestions that could make it feasible for all retail pharmacies (independents and chains) and still help 
correct the issues identified in the survey results. I do not love more regulations that we would have to 
follow, but with the results of the survey it is clear that something needs to be done for the mental health 
of the pharmacy staff and for the protection of the public from medications errors due to overworked or 
burned out pharmacists and technicians. 

To summarize the proposed regulations: 

Pharmacists 

0-20 Rx / Hour = 1 Pharmacist required 

21-40 Rx / Hour = 2 Pharmacists required 

41-60 Rx / Hour = 3 Pharmacists required 

Etc. 

If more than 9 prescriptions per hour are filled another non dispensing pharmacist would be required to 
perform non dispensing tasks like MTM, vaccinations and other activities. 

 

Technicians 

5-9 Rx / Hour = 1 Technician required 

10-19 Rx / Hour = 2 Technicians required 
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20-29 Rx / Hour = 3 Technicians required 

30-49 Rx / Hour = 4 Technicians required 

50-69 Rx / Hour = 5 Technicians required 

Etc. 

 

2. The managing pharmacist has the duty to enforce the provisions in these sections and maintain 
documentation of hourly compliance with these sections, including, but not limited the name of the 
pharmacist, and the name of the pharmaceutical technician or pharmaceutical technician staffed each 
hour and day, and is responsible for ensuring there is documentation of each hour and day the pharmacy 
fails to maintain minimum staffing requirements. This document must be readily retrievable and 
maintained for at least 2 years. 

3. The pharmacy, managing pharmacist, and all registered pharmacists have the duty to report to the 
Board when the pharmacy fails to maintain minimum staffing requirements for any hours during three 
(3) consecutive days 

 

I do not have enough experience in hospital pharmacy to have a useful opinion of the proposed changes 
to hospital pharmacy. 

 

I do not claim to have all of the answers but from my experience in Pharmacy this is what I think should 
be changed with the proposed regulations: 

 

Even though I could make it work for my pharmacies I think that the staffing requirements relating to 
prescriptions per hour are too low. 

Especially this year there are considerable economic pressures with reimbursement from the insurance 
companies. It is a matter of economy of scale, to be economically feasible pharmacies need to have 
higher volumes. 

One of my main suggestions is that minimums in dispensing fees, reimbursement, and business 
practices of the insurance companies must be addressed so that pharmacies do not have to fill high 
volumes to be even minimally profitable. 



5

I understand that this is not a topic that falls within the per-view of the Nevada board of Pharmacy, but 
when there is any proposed legislation that is addressing this, it should be analyzed and supported if 
deemed appropriate by the Board if it is permitted by the rules of the Board. Until the issue of 
reimbursement is resolved, real effective change in the pressures placed on pharmacy staff may not be 
possible. 

Here are some questions that I have: 

-What constitutes a Rx per hour, is it input, billed, counted and final check? Or is it just the number of 
prescriptions that a pharmacist performs the final check in that hour? 

- Is the Rx per hour literal, or an average of Rxs final checked per hour during the shift? 

If staff is well trained, when we first arrive in the morning we will be able to bill, fill, and check 70 
prescriptions in an hour especially if there are a high percentage are refills. This tapers off rapidly during 
the day as we “catch up” and are just doing prescriptions as they are sent in by providers or requested by 
patients. I do not feel there would be any benefit in safety to artificially cap how many prescriptions we 
can do in a specific hour, just so that we can be in compliance with this regulation. If a pharmacy is filling 
190 prescriptions in a 10 hour shift, but 60 were filled during the first hour the pharmacy is open, it would 
not make sense to schedule 3 pharmacists for that one hour only, nor does it make sense to require a 
pharmacy to slow down and spread out the 60 prescriptions of that first hour to 3 hours, solely to be in 
compliance with this regulation. So with this I would strongly suggest the board watch 
the average number of prescriptions per hour checked by a SPECIFIC pharmacist during their entire shift. 
This would show how overburdened an individual pharmacist is. 

For example a pharmacy fills 1000 prescriptions in a 10 hour time period. The Pharmacy staffs 3 
pharmacists at all times during the 10 hour shift. Pharmacist A performs the final check on 600 
prescriptions because they are known to be “fast” or they are low in seniority, but they also do not 
counsel patients or take phone calls. Pharmacist B is the PIC and they check 150 prescriptions during 
the 10 hour shift, they do paperwork and counsel patients most of the time. Pharmacist C checks 250 
prescriptions during the shift, they answer technician's questions and deal with phone calls. 

This could be a safe and effective work environment or it could be burning out, or putting too much 
pressure and liability on Pharmacist A. It would benefit the board and the PIC to look at these numbers 
and critically think about the situation and ask if it is safe. Without looking at individual pharmacists 1000 
prescriptions in a 10 hour shift with 30 Pharmacist hours might seem possible and safe for the public, 
until you look at the details. 

 

My suggestions for staffing levels are as follows: 

Pharmacists 
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0-30 Rx final checked / hour averaged over specific pharmacists entire shift = 1 Pharmacist required 

31-60 Rx final checked / hour averaged over specific pharmacists entire shift = 2 Pharmacist required 

61-90 Rx final checked / hour averaged over specific pharmacists entire shift = 3 Pharmacist required 

Etc. 

If more than 9 prescriptions per hour are filled another non-dispensing pharmacist would be required to 
perform non-dispensing tasks like MTM, critical care management and other activities. Vaccines can be 
performed at any time but would count as the equivalent of 3 to 5 prescriptions for that hour for that 
individual pharmacist. I would suggest that vaccines mostly be scheduled and done during the times 
when the pharmacy is less busy. 

For vaccines, I think that if a separate non-dispensing pharmacist is required if more than 9 Rxs / hour are 
filled then many pharmacies will decide to not offer vaccines or only offer them at specific locations or 
days of the week. This would limit patient access and decrease vaccine rates. I do not think this is what 
the Board of Pharmacy desires or intends with this regulation. 

For technicians I think the numbers of the proposed regulations are too low. In my pharmacies we are 
probably over staffed and even today we would be able to meet the requirements of the regulations, but 
other pharmacies would probably need to add additional staff that might not have enough work to do. 

I think that there should always be a technician in the pharmacy with a pharmacist. This would help with 
preventing distractions to a pharmacist during the final check, help make diversion harder, and improve 
safety (prevent or discourage robbery). In a very low Rx per hour situation the pharmacist would be 
allowed to be alone during the technician's meal time (lunch). 

 

My recommendations for technicians are: 

0-15 Rx / Hour = 1 Technician required 

16-25 Rx / Hour = 2 Technicians required 

26-35 Rx / Hour = 3 Technicians required 

36-55 Rx / Hour = 4 Technicians required 

56-75 Rx / Hour = 5 Technicians required 

Etc. 
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I also have questions about what would be required in case of sickness or employee turnover? How long 
would a pharmacy have to find someone to cover or hire an employee and get back into compliance? 

My pharmacies are mainly rural, finding technicians and pharmacists is a difficult process that takes 
some time. In addition when we do hire a technician in training even if we turn in the technician 
application to the Board the first day of hire, it can take 10 to 14 days for the technician in training 
License to be issued. This might make our prescriptions per day not in compliance for a month or more. 
Is this acceptable to the board? Or would we be capped at the ratio and have to turn patients away or 
face fines or draw the ire of the Board? 

The record keeping logs that are required would be a significant time burden on the PIC or managing 
pharmacist. There are not many ways around this. My suggestion is that each technician would need to 
keep a weekly log of their hours and the Rxs per each hour worked and then the average Rxs per hour for 
that shift. Additionally, each pharmacist would need to keep a weekly log of their hours and the Rxs that 
they performed the final check on per each hour worked and then the average Rxs that they performed 
the final check on per hour for that shift. The pharmacist would also need to specify which hours were 
dispensing vs non-dispensing. The PIC would be responsible along with the technician or pharmacist to 
make sure this log was kept weekly and was accurate. This would not overburden the PIC with this time 
consuming reporting requirement. 

Again thank you for taking the time to Look at these issues and to try to resolve them. 

 

Matthew Christensen PharmD   Lic 17632 

PIC  Rex Drug Co 



From: Pharmacy Board
To: Jessette Phaynarikone; Darlene Nases; Erin Miller
Subject: Fw: Comment on the required minimum pharmacy staffing
Date: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 7:11:27 AM
Attachments: Outlook-kg0s1rga.png

Thank you.

Nevada State 
Board of Pharmacy
985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy Suite 206
Reno, NV 89521 
Office: 775-850-1440
Fax:  775-850-1444
Web Page: https://bop.nv.gov/

This information is provided as a courtesy on behalf of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy.  This information does not
constitute legal advice and does not override the specific provisions of Nevada law as applied to a particular set of facts. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This message and any accompanying documents are intended only for the use of the individual or
entity to which they are addressed.  They may contain information that is proprietary, privileged, confidential or exempt from
disclosure under applicable Federal or State law.  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you are strictly prohibited from reading, using, sharing or copying this communication or its contents.  If you
have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy the original transmission. 

From: mheg antonette villanueva 
Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 1:31 AM
To: Pharmacy Board <pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov>
Subject: Comment on the required minimum pharmacy staffing

WARNING - This email originated from outside the State of Nevada. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.
Discussion about the minimum required staff to run a pharmacy is a very important factor in
ensuring patient safety. A well staffed pharmacy ensures pharmacists have adequate time to
review prescriptions for accuracy and interactions. Rushing due to understaffing can increase
the risk of dispensing errors, compromising patient’s well-being.

It is also important in improving productivity and efficiency with regard to pharmacy
operations. With enough staff, tasks like filling prescriptions, managing inventory, and
answering customer questions can be completed efficiently, minimizing wait times and
maximizing customer satisfaction.

Pharmacies also need to be compliant with the law, recognizing the legal and ethical
obligations to adhere to dispensing regulations. Having enough staff allows for proper
oversight and adherence to these guidelines.



Addressing the need to establish a minimum staffing requirement will also help with ensuring
the well-being of the employees at the work place. Chronic understaffing leads to burnout and
stress for pharmacy staff. This can impact the quality of care provided and increase turnover,
further exacerbating staffing issues.

While I believe that the current proposed regulations addressing the staffing issue is a good
start, it falls short in establishing the minimum staffing required BASED ON THE ENTIRE
RETAIL PHARMACY OPERATIONS. 

Simply stating that the minimum required number of staff should be based on the number of
prescriptions being processed or filled is inadequate. Factors such as total number of
transactions at the register, a.k.a. Out window transactions should also be taken in
consideration. 

For example, a pharmacy that processed (entered, verified, and filled) 150  prescriptions for
the day could have also processed 85 register transactions at the out window.  These
transactions could range between 5 to 10 minutes per patient tying up a staff or 2 for hours at
the out window. Meanwhile, the said pharmacy could have also received around the same
amount of phone calls, if not a little less, for the day. 
Based on the proposed regulation where a pharmacy that dispenses between 100 - 190
prescriptions in 10 hours, the 2 minimum technicians required to be in the pharmacy for those
operational hours can get tied up fulfilling those tasks as well. 
Sure, it can be said that they may be able to multi task in order to process prescriptions, but it
also poses the risk of making mistakes and mishandling prescriptions due to excessive work
load. 
 
Aside from processing prescriptions, the pharmacy receives several totes of
medications/inventory most days of the week that need to be properly stored on the shelves
and refrigerators. This adds on to the list of tasks that must be performed in order to facilitate a
properly running pharmacy. 

Given the scenario, the proposed regulations regarding the minimum required number of
pharmacy technicians for the day is inadequate. I believe that number should be increase
and  that a required minimum amount of technician hours must also be defined in the addition
to the number of technicians per day. 

As for only requiring 1 pharmacy technician for a pharmacy that processes between 50 to 90,
this is inadequate. Most especially because the proposed regulation offers an exception for the
pharmacist in the same pharmacy to perform non-dispensing tasks such as giving
immunizations. This poses a risk not only to patient safety but also the safety of the employee.
To allow the pharmacist on duty to give vaccines without any technicians is to undermine the
safety and security of that pharmacist. It also equates to placing the patients he or she serves in
harm’s way. 

Frankly, in terms of the minimum required technicians, the proposed regulations might as well
have been written by a pharmacy corporate employee. This is because it resembles the current
practices that are already employed by the companies. The regulations will only give way for
the companies to continue on their current practices as the proposed regulations will allow



them to say that they are currently already compliant. With this in mind, no change will
happen. 

I think having this discussion is a good start. However, it must be improved in a manner that
considers the entire operations of the pharmacy not just the number of prescriptions being
processed. It must also offer definitions regarding the pharmacist required whether it’s
physical or virtual pharmacist considering how companies, in our current time, can employ
pharmacists that do virtual or remote verifications. 

-- 
Mheg Antonette Villanueva, Pharm. D.
Albertsons/Vons Floater Pharmacist 



From: Pharmacy Board
To: Darlene Nases; Erin Miller; Jessette Phaynarikone
Subject: Fw: COMMENT - for meeting May 29,2024 , minimum staffing recommendations
Date: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 7:11:00 AM
Attachments: Outlook-m5yu0d02.png

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

From: Omar Aly < >
Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2024 12:59 AM
To: Pharmacy Board <pharmacy@pharmacy.nv.gov>
Subject: COMMENT - for meeting May 29,2024 , minimum staffing recommendations
 
WARNING - This email originated from outside the State of Nevada. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.
Good Morning,
Comment:
Minimum staffing is crucial in pharmacies due to the complex and time-sensitive nature
of pharmacist work.While it might seem like pharmacists can handle cashiering duties,
phone calls and vaccines alongside their other tasks, here's why it becomes problematic:

Focus and Accuracy: Dispensing medications requires absolute focus and double-
checking to avoid potentially dangerous errors. Multitasking between cashiering, phone
calls, vaccines and dispensing can lead to mistakes with prescriptions.
Patient Consultations: Pharmacists often need to answer complex questions from
patients about their medications and potential interactions. This dedicated time can't be
interrupted by cashiering duties, vaccines, and answering the phone.
Vaccinations: Administering vaccinations involves proper
procedures, documentation, and potential side effect monitoring. This cannot be rushed
alongside cashiering, vaccinations and answering phone calls .



Physical Presence Matters:
It's important to note that minimum staffing requires a licensed pharmacist to be
physically present in the store.While virtual consultations, virtual verify and similar techs
with pharmacists might exist in some cases (especially in the large retail chains), they cannot
replace the need for in-person oversight and direct patient interaction during medication
dispensing, vaccinations, and complex consultations.  Virtual pharmacy work is a high risk in
and of itself.
The companies MUST not be allowed to use this as a loophole to avoid having overlap or
additional pharmacy staff physically present in the pharmacy. 
Metrics for Staffing Decisions:
While there's no single metric for ideal staffing, a combination of factors helps determine
minimum levels:

Prescription Volume: The average number of prescriptions filled daily. Higher volume
requires more pharmacists for accurate dispensing.
Phone Call Volume: The average number of incoming calls seeking
consultations, refills, or medication inquiries.Pharmacists need dedicated time for these
calls.
Vaccination Rates: The number of daily vaccinations impacts pharmacist
workload. Busy vaccination clinics need dedicated staff.
Cashier Transactions: The average number of customer transactions per day. High
transaction volume might justify a dedicated cashier to free up pharmacists.

Simply basing the additional technician ratio off of just prescription volume solely is a huge
mistake and will just continue to perpetuate the risk to patient safety in the pharmacy. 

This needs to be  reiterated, and metrics exist that can easily justify the need for more help -
phone calls, consultations, vaccines, register transactions need to be considered.
Finding the Right Balance:
By considering these metrics, pharmacies can establish minimum staffing levels. This ensures
pharmacists have dedicated time for:

Dispensing medications accurately
Providing thorough consultations
Administering vaccinations safely

Ultimately, minimum staffing with a physically present pharmacist helps maintain patient
safety and well-being, which is the top priority for any pharmacy.  The proposed law needs
revision to include thresholds of other non pharmacist duties. 
Here is a very rough draft but a good example:
**1. A pharmacy, as defined in NRS 639.012, except an institutional pharmacy, as defined by
NRS 639.0085, and a pharmacy in a correctional institution, as defined by NRS 639.0123
engaged in the dispensing of controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall staff a pharmacy
in a manner that meets the demand of the pharmacy while prioritizing patient care and safety.
a. The following are the minimum pharmacist staffing requirements:**
i. A pharmacy shall staff the pharmacy with a minimum of two (2) pharmacists for every hour
the pharmacy is: * Filling greater than or equal to ten (10) prescriptions per hour; OR *
Handling greater than or equal to five (5) phone calls per hour; OR * Completing greater than
or equal to 30 (30) register transactions per hour; OR * Administering greater than or equal to



four (4) vaccines per hour. (see survey results for questions 7, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 40, 45, 47,
48, 54, 55, 56, 57) ii. The pharmacy shall add, at a minimum, an additional pharmacist
technician for every ten (10) prescriptions filled per hour OR every five (5) additional phone
calls handled per hour OR every one thirty (30) additional register transactions completed per
hour OR every 4 (4) additional vaccines administered per hour thereafter by the pharmacy.
(see survey results for questions 7, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 40, 45, 47, 48, 54, 55, 56, 57) iii. If the
pharmacy is engaged in providing non-dispensing services during the hours the pharmacy is
also providing dispensing services, the pharmacy must add an additional pharmacist
designated to perform the non-dispensing services. (see survey results for questions 28, 29, 30,
40, 47, 55, 56, 57)
[Remainder of the law remains unchanged except to include the other variables stated
above]
Considerations:

This revision provides a more holistic approach to staffing by considering not just
prescriptions filled but also other workload factors like phone calls, register
transactions, and vaccinations.
It's important to ensure data collection methods for phone calls, transactions, and
vaccinations are clear and verifiable.

Thank you,
Omar A



To be included in the record from the May 29th, 2024 Board of Pharmacy 
meeting. Was only able to testify for three minutes and testimony was cut off 
by President Parks. Please include this testimony in full for the Board. 
 

Retail pharmacies need flexibility in determining staffing levels and why 
regulators should avoid limiting the number of prescriptions filled per person 
per day: 

1. Patient Access to Medications: Retail pharmacies play a critical role in 
ensuring patients have timely access to their medications. By allowing 
flexibility in staffing, pharmacies can efficiently manage prescription 
volumes, reducing wait times and ensuring patients receive their 
medications promptly. 

2. Adaptability to Demand Fluctuations: Prescription volumes can vary 
significantly based on factors such as flu seasons, public health 
emergencies, or local events. Flexible staffing allows pharmacies to adjust 
quickly to changing demand. For instance, during a flu outbreak, 
pharmacies may need additional staff to handle increased prescription fills 
and vaccinations. 

3. Patient-Centric Services: Beyond dispensing medications, pharmacies offer 
valuable services like medication therapy management, immunizations, and 
health screenings. Adequate staffing enables pharmacists to engage with 
patients, answer questions, and provide personalized care. Limiting 
prescriptions per person per day could hinder these essential services. 
 

Every pharmacy environment is unique; interdependent factors that include the 
intelligence, competence, attitude, motivation, and teamwork of all pharmacy 
employees; the pharmacy environment; the local patient population; and 
relationships with local physicians and other practitioners, just to name a few, 
determine whether the number of employees on-hand is sufficient to provide 
proper pharmacy care.  Pharmacy management needs to have the flexibility to 
evaluate the individual needs of their pharmacies and determine the number of 
pharmacists and support staff needed in a particular pharmacy to ensure that it is 
staffed to safely and efficiently fill their patients’ prescriptions. 
 



The increase in prescription volume, coupled with the continued pharmacist 
shortage, makes the expanded use of pharmacy technicians and technology 
even more important in reducing the likelihood of prescription errors. The 
number of prescriptions filled by retail pharmacies grew to 6.9 billion in 2023, 
up from 6.1 billion in 2018.1 

• Although we recognize that each individual pharmacist may have 
performance levels at which he or she may not perform optimally, there 
is a public misconception that filling a higher volume of prescriptions 
directly correlates with a higher rate of prescription errors.  Studies 
have shown the opposite: in fact, pharmacies that fill a lower volume of 
prescriptions are associated with an increased frequency in errors, and 
when pharmacists shift to higher workloads, the frequency of errors 
decreases. 2 

• With the continued growth of prescription volume, each pharmacy will 
undoubtedly continue to fill an increasing number of prescriptions.  
Technicians and technology serve as adjuncts to the pharmacist 
making it possible to fill ever-increasing volumes safely and beneficially 
for patients.  Our members recognize that pharmacists’ work 
environment is important to maintaining patient safety; we utilize 
existing technologies and favor new initiatives that help pharmacists 
work more efficiently and safely. 

 
 

It is impossible to find a magic number for how many prescriptions could be 
safely dispensed that would be applicable to all pharmacists.   

 

 
1 Source:  

1. IQVIA Report on “The Use of Medicines in the U.S. 2024 Usage and Spending Trends and Outlook to 
2028” Available at: https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-
publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2024  

2. IQVIA Report on “The Use of Medicines in the U.S. 2023 Usage and Spending Trends and Outlook to 
2027” Available at: https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-
publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2023 

 
2 Grasha, Anthony F.  “Psychosocial Factors, Workload, and Risk of Medication Errors,” US Pharmacist 27: 4 
(2001). 

https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2024
https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2024
https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2023
https://www.iqvia.com/insights/the-iqvia-institute/reports-and-publications/reports/the-use-of-medicines-in-the-us-2023


• People have different thresholds for how much work they can competently 
accomplish, which is dependent upon cognitive (an individual’s approach to 
completing tasks) and psychological factors (an individual’s state of mind).  
This is why we advocate for pharmacy management to have the flexibility 
to evaluate the individual needs of their pharmacies and determine the 
number of pharmacists and support staff needed in a particular pharmacy 
to ensure that it is staffed to fill their patients’ prescriptions safely and 
efficiently. 

 
Resolution of third-party insurance issues is time-consuming.  Our members are 
working with state legislators and boards of pharmacy to allow pharmacies to 
utilize an adequate number of pharmacy support staff to perform such tasks so 
that pharmacists can spend more time interacting with patients. 

 

• Third party insurance requirements are a source of tension and a source of 
stress for pharmacists which affect accuracy.  This is why we strongly 
advocate that states loosen the restrictions on the number of pharmacy 
technicians that work in pharmacies to perform these sorts of jobs that do 
not require a pharmacist’s professional judgment, and free up the 
pharmacist to interact with and counsel patients on their prescriptions. 

 
 
As an industry, chain pharmacy continues to evaluate and improve pharmacy 
environmental factors, such as adequate pharmacy lighting and the flow of the 
pharmacy workspace, to minimize the likelihood for pharmacy errors. 

 

• As human beings, multiple factors affect almost everything around us, 
including an individual’s state of mind.  In pharmacies, studies have shown 
that up to 34% of errors are related to these types of influences relating 
more to a pharmacist’s personal state of mind (which could influenced by 
whether or not he or she had a fight with their spouse the night before, or 
whether they get along with their colleagues). 3  Furthermore, as 
individuals, pharmacists have varied cognitive approaches to completing 

 
3 Grasha, Anthony F.  “Understanding Medication Errors: A Cognitive Systems Approach,” APhA Annual Meeting 
(2001). 



their daily duties: those who have the cognitive style of attending to details 
and can focus their attention tend to make few errors.  
 

Use of pharmacy technicians, technology, and creative and innovative practices 
enable pharmacists to meet the needs of their patients; expanded to allow for 
further use of these resources is especially important when you take into 
consideration the existing pharmacist shortage. 

• Our members seek to employ as many pharmacists as are available.  Due to 
the current pharmacist shortage, pharmacies often find that vacant 
pharmacist positions stay that way for extended periods of time.  This is 
why we encourage the use of pharmacy technicians, technology, and 
creative, alternative tools to meet the ever-growing needs of the public for 
pharmacy services.  

• Currently across the United States, there are 18,903 and 39,716 open 
positions for pharmacists and pharmacy technicians respectively.4 

 

In summary. granting retail pharmacies the flexibility to determine staffing 
levels ensures better patient care, responsiveness to demand fluctuations, and 
overall business viability. Regulators should consider these factors when 
evaluating prescription limits to avoid unintended consequences for patients’ 
access to essential medications. 

 

Sincerely, 

Liz MacMenamin  
Retail Association of Nevada 
Vice President, Government Affairs 
410 South Minnesota Street 
Carson City, Nv. 89703 

 

 
4 Source: https://www.aacp.org/sites/default/files/2024-05/pharmacy-demand-report-
04292024.pdf 

 

https://www.mckinsey.com/industries/healthcare/our-insights/meeting-changing-consumer-needs-the-us-retail-pharmacy-of-the-future
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https://www.aacp.org/sites/default/files/2024-05/pharmacy-demand-report-04292024.pdf
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5D 



BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, | CASE NO. 19-086-CS-S

Petitioner,
V.

MICHAELS. MALL, MD, | STIPULATION AND ORDER
Certificate of Registration Nos.
CS18967 and PD00257,

Respondent.

J. David Wuest, in his official capacity as Executive Secretary of the Nevada State Board

of Pharmacy (Board), by and through General Counsel Brett Kandt, and Respondent Michael S.

Mali, MD, Certificate of Registration Nos. CS 18967 and PD00257, by and through counsel,

Richard A. Schonfeld, Esq., HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE THAT:

1. On or about February 9, 2024, Respondent was served with the First Amended

Notice of Intended Action and Accusation (First Amended Accusation) on file in this matter

together with the Statement to Respondent and Notice of Hearing.

2. On or about March 4, 2024, Respondent filed an Answer and Notice of Defense to

the First Amended Accusation.

3. Respondent is fully aware of the right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter

and obtained the advice of counsel prior to entering into this Stipulation.

4. Respondent is aware of the right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the

Accusation, the right to reconsideration, the right to appeal and any and all other rights which

may be accorded to him pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act),

NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS

Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act).



5. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the

exception of the right to challenge any determination that Respondent has failed to comply with

the provisions of this Stipulation, Respondent hereby knowingly and voluntarily waives the

rights to a hearing, reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this action that

may be accorded to him by NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), NRS

Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS Chapter

639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act).

6. Respondent does not admit to the allegations in the First Amended Accusation,

however. Respondent is agreeing to resolve this matter to avoid the costs of hearings and

potential subsequent litigation, and with the exception of the allegations in Paragraph 4,

recognizes that Board staff prosecuting this case believes they have a reasonable basis to allege

that Respondent engaged in conduct that is grounds for discipline as follows:

A. On February 21, 2019, Respondent surrendered his DEA Certificate of

Registration No. FM2307468 to the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration by executing a DEA

Form 104, which operated as an immediate suspension of his Certificate of Registration Nos.

CS18967 and PD00257 with the Board pursuant to NRS 639.2107, although Respondent asserts

that he immediately thereafter sought to rescind the surrender;

B. Respondent failed to timely renew his Certificate of Registration Nos.

CS 18967 and PD00257, which expired on October 31, 2022;

C. On or about September 15, 2023, the Nevada State Board of Medical

Examiners (NSBME) entered an order in Case Nos. 22-8666-1, 22-8666-2, and 22-8666-3, and

imposed discipline on Respondent's License No. 6074 to practice medicine for engaging in

conduct in violation of the standards of practice established by the NSBME, specifically for

violations of NRS 630.3062(1 )(b)(3) and NRS 639.23913 related to prescribing controlled

substances to treat acute pain or chronic pain; and



D. By violating NRS Chapter 630 as detailed in the NSBME's order in Case

Nos. 22-8666-1, 22-8666-2, and 22-8666-3, Respondent violated NRS 453.381(1) and/or NRS

639.2391-.23914, inclusive, and committed acts that render his registration inconsistent with the

public interest pursuant to NRS 453.236(l)(e).

7. Those violations are pled with particularity in the Accusation and are grounds for

action pursuant to NRS 453.236(1), NRS 453.241(1), NRS 639.210, NRS 639.23916(3)(b)

and/orNRS 639.255.

8. To resolve this matter without incurring any further costs or the expense

associated with a hearing, the Board and Respondent stipulate to the following:

A. The allegation in Paragraph 4 of the First Amended Accusation is

withdrawn and the related causes of action in Counts 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6, Paragraphs 17, 19, 20, 21

and 22 of the First Amended Accusation are hereby dismissed pursuant to NRS 622A.320(4).

B. Counts 2 and 7, Paragraphs 18 and 23 of the First Amended Accusation,

based upon Respondent's violations ofNRS Chapter 630 as detailed in the NSBME's orders in

Case Nos. 22-8666-1, 22-8666-2, and 22-8666-3, stand; however, Count 7 is amended by

striking the charge that Respondent committed acts that render his registration inconsistent with

the public interest "by issuing controlled substance prescriptions after the suspension of his

Certificate of Registration No. CS18967."

C. Count 8, Paragraph 24 of the First Amended Accusation, based upon

Respondent's surrender of his DEA Registration No. FM2307468 for cause, stands, although

Respondent asserts that he immediately thereafter sought to rescind the surrender.

D. Respondent Michael S. Mali, MD, Certificate of Registration Nos.

CS 18967 and PD00257, stipulates to the following penalties:

i. Certificate of Registration Nos. CS 18967 and PD00257 are

forfeited by operation of law pursuant to NRS 639.1 80(6);



ii. Respondent may not possess (except pursuant to the lawful order

of a practitioner), administer, prescribe or dispense a controlled substance or dispense a

dangerous drug until he applies to the Board for registration pursuant to NRS 453.226(1) and/or

NRS 639.23505;

iii. In the event Respondent applies for registration pursuant to NRS

453.226(1) and/or NRS 639.23505 or for any other registration or certificate with the Board, he

shall appear before the Board to answer questions and give testimony regarding his application,

his compliance with this Order, and the facts and circumstances underlying this matter;

iv. Pursuant to NRS 639.255(l)(f) and NAC 639.955(5), Respondent

shall pay a fine of Two Thousand Dollars ($2000.00) for the violations, by personal, business,

certified or cashier's check or money order made payable to "State of Nevada, Office of the

Treasurer," to be received by the Board's Reno office located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway -

Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521, due and payable by September 1,2024;and

v. Pursuant to NRS 622.400, Respondent shall pay One Thousand

Dollars ($1000.00) to partially reimburse the Board for recoverable attorney's fees and

recoverable costs incurred in investigating and prosecuting this matter, by personal, business,

certified or cashier's check or money order made payable to the "Nevada State Board of

Pharmacy" to be received by the Board's Reno office located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway

Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521, due and payable by September 1,2024.

9. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Order may result in

issuance by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause pursuant to NAC 639.965

directing Respondent to appear before the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting for a

show cause hearing. If such a hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Order by

Respondent, the Board may impose additional discipline upon Respondent consistent with the

provisions ofNRS Chapters 453 and 639.



10. General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for approval pursuant

to NRS 622.330 at the Board's regularly scheduled public meeting on May 29, 2024. Respondent

will appear in person at the meeting to answer questions from the Board Members and/or Board

Staff. The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate regarding this Stipulation, even

if Respondent is not present at the meeting.

11. The Board has discretion to accept this Stipulation, but it is not obligated to do so.

If this Stipulation is approved by the Board, it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330

and shall be reported to the National Practitioner Data Bank pursuant to 42 USC § 1396r-2 and

45 CFR Part 60.

12. If the Board rejects any part or all of this Stipulation, and unless they reach an

alternative agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the

merits of this matter may be heard by the Board at a later date. The terms and admissions herein

may not be used or referred to in a full hearing on the merits of this matter.

13. Subject to the approval of this Stipulation by the Board, the Board and

Respondent agree to release one another from any and all additional claims arising from the facts

set forth in the Accusation on file herein, whether known or unknown that might otherwise have

existed on or before the effective date of this Order.



Firefox about:blank

Respondent has fully considered the charges and .illegations contained in the First
Amended Notice of Infended Action and Accusation in this matter, and the terms of this
Stipulation, and has knowingly and voluntarily agreed to the terms set forth herein, and
waived certain rights, as stated herein.

AGREED:

Signed this^day of /)/? ^ Y 2024

MICHAEL S. MALL, M6
Certificate of Registration Nos.
CS18967 and PD00257

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT
this ^day of Al^ 2024

Signed this _ day of. 2024

BRETT KANDT, ESQ.
General Counsel
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy

RICHARD A. SCIIONFELD, ESQ.
Counsel for Respondent

ORDER

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as to

Respondent Michael S. Mail, MD, Certificate of Registration Nos. CS 18967 and PD00257, in

Case No. 19-086-CS-S, and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipulation be made

immediately effective upon execution below.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Entered this _ day of May 2024.

Helen Park, Pharm.D.

President
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy

6 of 6 5/20/2024, 11:11 AM
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